CITY OF HANOVER
CITY COUNCIL MEETING
OCTOBER 5, 2021 - OFFICIAL MINUTES

Call to Order/Pledge of Allegiance:

Mayor Chris Kauffman called the regular meeting of Tuesday, October 5, 2021, to order at 7:00 p.m.
Present were Mayor Chris Kauffman, Councilors Ken Warpula, Jim Zajicek, MaryAnn Hallstein and
Thomas Dierberger. Also present was City Attorney Jay Squires, City Administrator Brian Hagen, Public
Works Supervisor Jason Doboszenski and Accountant Jackie Heinz. Guests Present were Amy Biren,
Jennifer Nash, and Scott Thielman.

Approval of Agenda:
MOTION by Hallstein to approve the agenda, seconded by Warpula. Motion carried unanimously.

Consent Agenda:
Heinz amended claims in the amount of $567.76, claims new total is $131,331.29, total claims new total
is $148,784.91.
MOTION by Hallstein to approve the amended consent agenda, seconded by Warpula.
a. Approve Minutes of September 21, 2021 City Council Work Session Meeting
b. Approve Claims as Presented:

» Claims $ 131,331.29
> Payroll $ 10,813.20
> PIR taxes & Exp $ 3,965.39
> Other Claims $ 2675.03
» Total Claims $ 148,748.91

b. Res No 10-05-21-78 — Accepting Resignation of Brian Hagen
c. Res No 10-05-21-79 — Approving Hire of Temporary Snowplow Drivers
Motion carried unanimously.

Citizen’s Forum
B.H.M. Schools

Kauffman inquired if school board meetings are open to the public. Thielman stated yes, the second
Monday of the month is the workshop where no action is taken, and updates are given. Thielman further
stated the October meeting is in Montrose and the November meeting will be at the High School.
Thielman stated the meeting schedule is listed on the school website and board meetings are held at the
Discovery school the fourth Tuesday of the month. Kauffman stated good there’s a place to voice concerns
and hear the boards position.

Thielman gave a brief overview of events over the last two years:

e 2 Yearsago, was present for the operating referendum, 7,200 voters turned out which is the highest
in a non-general election, the referendum passed by 1,200 votes

e March 2020 is when everything changed, schools were closed and distance learning began, the
school provided technology, breakfast, and lunch to kids. 265,134 meals were served from March
to June of 2020, none were in person.

e July 2020 started planning for three learning models to be ready for the first day of school,
mitigation plan, water fountains, plexi-glass, PPE, cleaning, tables, chairs, etc. Things were
constantly changing daily with new implementations.

e November 2020 Covid spiked, dealt with not enough subs and mandating quarantines.



e December 2020 it was announced vaccines would be available soon, had to prioritize 900 staff to
get vaccinated, first received 12 vaccines, then 36, then went by the state registry, then by county.
By March 2021 those that chose to get a vaccine had received it.

e February 2021 the Allina shooting happened, began to reunify, and get through the end of the year.
We learned we can adapt, but not without challenges.

e Spring 2021 Received support from state and federal government. Wright County and Buffalo
Township gave the school money.

e Now offering online courses, will keep moving forward to meet the needs of parents and students.

Kauffman inquired what future enrollment numbers will be. Thielman stated Hanover has 50-60 new
homes slated over the next couple of years, demographers calculate 1 student per 4 homes. With 50-60
new homes, that’s 12 new students per year. Thielman further stated enrollment dropped due to home
schooling.

Zajicek stated the district should be receiving more money since new homes are going up and increased
property taxes. Thielman stated the state funding is based per pupil. Roughly 85% of the districts funding
comes from the state, 8-10% is property taxes and the remaining percent comes from Federal and
Miscellaneous sources. Zajicek inquired how do you budget when you don’t know how many students
are coming back. Thielman stated it is very difficult but they’re doing well, the district uses a software
app which looks at birth rates, growth, etc. in Wright County to get a more accurate number. Thielman
further stated when students choose to go PSCO, the district gets no money, it goes to the college. So, the
school now offers 40 college courses at school. Hallstein stated the hybrid learning model was better
since students could check in, how does that fit and is the success rate better? Thielman stated since the
emergency declaration has ended, distance and hybrid learning models are no longer available.

Kauffman inquired what the school boards position is on CRT, or Critical Race Theory. Thielman stated
the school doesn’t teach CRT, CRT is a theory developed at the collegiate level, we follow the MN
standards for social studies. Kauffman inquired if individual teachers are allowed to teach CRT. Thielman
stated no, we teach the social studies standards. Hallstein stated whether it’s a new or current class, the
syllabus must be approved by the school district. Hallstein further stated the movies, books, etc. all must
be planned out and approved. Kauffman inquired if CRT could be used as a resource, but not part of the
plan. Thielman stated they may use a resource, but CRT is not part of their plan. Dierberger stated he
read an article which stated they are elevating ethnic studies to the level of the social studies standards.
Dierberger further stated it looks like they’re breaking it down from K-12 with benchmarks. Thielman
stated he hasn’t reviewed that, but this country is a melting pot with all different ethnicities. Dierberger
stated one thing the article refers to is asking Kindergartners to identify themselves with race, region,
gender, ethnicity, language, family, that seems to be a lot for a Kindergartner. Thielman stated social
studies has generally gone with the concept that it’s, family, community, city, region, State, nation then
world civilization. That has been the state for kindergarten through 6™ grade for years. Thielman went
on to say he was in Texas for 13 years and it was the same there. They do talk about what is your heritage
and items that go along with it. Kauffman stated we are a melting pot, but CRT doesn’t help us come
together, it tears us apart. Kauffman further stated he hopes CRT doesn’t get into the Buffalo School
District and stated individual teachers can have their opinion, but not teach it.

Kauffman inquired of Thielman what equity means to him. Thielman stated people getting what they
need at the time they need it. For example, if a student has a deficit in reading, we are going to get them
extra help and extra resources. Thielman further stated they offer a Quest program, which is the top 1-3%
who are gifted and qualified and must qualify to be in the program, so they get what they need. Thielman
further stated that’s why college classes are offered; we’re trying to offer as much as we can.



Kauffman inquired how equity differs from equality of opportunity. Kauffman stated he feels equity is
looking for equal outcomes, which is a race to the bottom and try to get everyone to the same place but
not everyone can achieve the same. Thielman stated if we have a high enough bar, and whether you
choose to reach that bar, whether you go to college or trades or work force, we have prepared you for
where you want to go when you walk out that door at graduation. Thielman further stated equity is not
about limiting access to classes. Kauffman recommended communicating that message to the community.
Thielman stated the bar is this high and they want everyone to achieve that bar. Thielman stated for
example, the standard is that Algebra 1 is passed in 8" grade, in Quest, Algebra 1 could be taken in 71"
grade. Thielman stated we give as many options as possible and access to those options while students
are in school. Hallstein stated with the curriculum development board, they talk about not all kids are in
the same wagon, there are kids with special needs who have different goals than those kids who are in
Quest. Hallstein further stated each level uses evaluations and may need intervention here, but it’s not
intervention forever, students are getting what they need when they need it.

Kauffman inquired about the school districts position about preferential treatment based on race.
Thielman stated we use our policies which are online and in the handbook. Zajicek inquired about the
discipline rules. Thielman stated the discipline policies are provided in the handbook. Zajicek inquired
if staff is union. Thielman stated not all are union, some are a collaborative bargaining agreement, there
is a custodial union and food service union. Zajicek inquired if the information was available on the
school’s website, Thielman stated yes under the HR department.

Kauffman stated the school district lost a law suit this summer on the transgender issue and ended up
adopting what | feel, is the one of the most liberal policies in the country, along with other schools which
have lost similar lawsuits. Kauffman inquired where this is going to get to. Thielman stated the courts
have ruled and it’s a violation of the human rights act, this has been challenged and it’s a violation of title
9, the supreme court has refused to hear the appeal and so it’s the law. Thielman further stated the
lawmakers Eric Lucero, Marion O’Neill, Joe McDonald, Senator Anderson, and Senator Kiffmeyer is
where state law needs to be changed. Or Congressman Tom Emmer, or Senators Klobuchar or Smith, but
the courts have ruled based on the current laws that are on the books. Districts adopt policies based on
the current laws and statutes; we don’t change those statutes. Kauffman asked council that they all are
aware of the new policy, based on sexual identity students can use either bathroom. Thielman thanked
council for the BHM hour and looks forward to the next visit.

Public Hearing
None

Unfinished Business
None

New Business
Res No 10-05-21-80 — Approving Auditing Services Contract with Bergan KDV

Hagen stated the city has been with KDV, now Bergan KDV since the early 90’s. Chris previously asked
to see what other cities are paying, there was no consistency. Hagen further stated KDV sent a quote
showing an annual increase of 2.25% for the city audit, and an annual increase of 2.5% for the FRA audit.
Hallstein inquired if Hagen worked the numbers. Hagen stated the city previously had a 3-year contract
which jumped 5.25% the first year and held steady for the remaining two years. Hagen further stated he
asked KDV the number of hours they have into the audit, KDV stated 200 — 220 hours per year. Hagen
stated KDV is great to work with, answering questions all year long and with quick responses. Inquiries



throughout the year are included in the contract price. Kauffman stated he reached out to other cities and
found we are in the ballpark.

MOTION by Warpula to approve Res No 10-05-21-80, seconded by Dierberger. Motion carried
unanimously.

Fire Department Officer Interviews
Hagen stated we will need a couple council members to sit in on the fire department interviews, the
applications are out and due at the end of October. Hagen further stated Ken usually abstains from
participating in the interviews. Hallstein inquired if they would take place during November. Hagen
stated yes with recommendations at the December work session. Hallstein stated she will participate.
Dierberger stated he will participate as well.

City Administrator Transition Plan

Hagen stated included in the packet is a redlined version of the administrators’ job description which was
created when Annita was here. Hagen further stated the accounting role is no longer a part of his job and
there were some other minor adjustments. Hagen tweaked the education and experience tab as well.
Kauffman stated we’re not looking to change this now. Hagen stated it would need to be changed before
the job is advertised. Dierberger inquired about changing the title of the position. Hagen stated by law
there must be a clerk, but not sure about the treasurer. Squired stated he is unsure about the treasurer as
well. Dierberger stated you may attract different people with a different title. Squires suggested to take
out the Clerk and Treasurer in the title of the position and instead include it below in the duties. Council
consensus to adjust the title and include duties in the description.

Kauffman asked Nash if she’s met everyone. Nash stated she has met everyone but Tom and Jay. Nash
further stated she has 16 years of experience in local government, including the past 6 years in Buffalo
and Howard Lake before that. She currently lives in Buffalo and likes that Hanover is a nice small town
with a rural setting. Hallstein stated Nash has election experience as well. Kauffman stated there was
good conversation during the initial meeting. Hallstein agreed, stating good back and forth conversation
and felt Nash would be a good fit for the city and the residents. Dierberger asked to call and talk with
Nash sometime this week.

Hagen stated there are two items to discuss, the first are the terms of the interim role and the second a plan
for permanent recruitment. Hallstein asked Squires if the city is required to post the position. Squires
stated you are not required to post the position, but suggested advertising to reach people and to give equal
opportunity. Kauffman stated advertising is not necessary. Hallstein stated but it is recommended.
Kauffman stated the interim would be a trial period. Squires stated they are different where a city can
direct negotiate for the interim services and consider options for permanent replacement. Dierberger
inquired on the time frame. Kauffman stated a time frame hasn’t been discussed. Hallstein stated the
interim could be here until January or February depending on advertising. Hallstein inquired about the
year end reporting which would be due. Hagen stated many of the reports are due by the end of January.
Hallstein stated a good transition time would be good to get familiar with everyone. Kauffman stated the
interim length could be shortened and hire Nash in two months. Hallstein suggested advertising for four
weeks. Warpula inquired how to move forward. Hagen stated the details of the interim contract need to
be figured out, Jay will need to write them up and get approved at the October 19" council meeting, Nash
would then start shortly after. Kauffman suggested a special meeting to work out the details. Council
consensus to meet on Tuesday, October 121" at 5:00 pm to discuss the interim position.



Reports
Doboszenski
e Slowly shutting down parks and irrigation systems.
e Picking away at the berm
e LED Lights are done at City Hall and have begun at the Fire Station
Hallstein
e Park Board has cancelled the Pumpkin Decorating Event
e EDA will be meeting on October 14" to discuss parking and give feedback to the Planning
Commission
e The EDA has one member up for re-election at the end of the year
Zajicek
e Planning Commission discussed pools and outdoor storage on grass and gravel and shipping
containers used for storage
e Also reaching out for options on the parking situation
Warpula
e Inquired about the berm. Doboszenski stated they are currently clearing trees and WSB will need
to shoot elevations
Hagen
e Thanked council for accepting his resignation
e EDA will be looking at parking and review, comments will go to Planning Commission, will
follow with a Public Hearing Notice and then to Council
e Big Bore BBQ has their wetland delineation completed
e The rest of Crow River Heights has been sold to ForeStar. They will plat the remaining portions.
e Anderson Farm is also in the process of being sold, having a meeting on Friday to discuss options
with the prospective buyer.

Adjournment
MOTION by Warpula to adjourn at 8:33 p.m., seconded by Hallstein. Motion carried unanimously.

APPROVED BY:

Chris Kauffman, Mayor
ATTEST:

Brian Hagen, City Administrator



